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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The directors present their strategic report on the Addison Lee Financing Limited group of companies (“the Graup”) for
the year ended 31 August 2019.

Principal activities, review of the business and future developments

During the year under review, the Group was engaged principally in ground transportation activities initiated in the United
Kingdom {"UK"} and the United States of America {“US"), including the provision of the following services:

private-hire and managed vehicles;
*  executive cars and chauffeuring;
- airport transfers;
» coaches hire;
transportatian for events;
+ deliveries and courier; and
+ ownership and rental to third parties of motor vehicles

The directars consider that the Group's key financial performance indicators to be thase that communicate the financial
performance and strength of the Group as a whole, as follows (see note 3 for more details of alternative performance
measures):

Increase /
Asat31 Asat31  ldecrease)
August 2019 August 2018 yearon
£'000 £000 year
Revenue 394,584 390,325 1%

Gross profit 99,708 109,280 (9%)
Gross profit margin 25.3% 28.0% (3%)
Adjusted EBITDA inote B) 49,405 53,804 (8%)
Loss before tax {79,974) {26,977) 196%

Revenue growth for the year ended 31 August 2019 was 1% and was the combination of strong performance for Tristar
business in the UK and sustained growth in Addison Lee and US Operations:

e Underlying revenue growth across the UK businesses of 0.4%, contributing £1.3m to the growth in Group revenues
in the year; and

*  Revenue growth across the US business of 4.0%, contributing £3.0m to growth in Group revenues in the year.

Notwithstanding the positive growth in revenues in the current financial year, gross profit was down by 9% arising from
lower productivity mainly in the Tristar fixed cost base business followed by intense competition in the UK resulting in
lower number of drivers available for Addison Lee self-employed business. In the US gross margin was down by 3% as the
business continued to invest in service capabitity to drive revenue growth gpportunities.

As part of a restructuring program, the Group has made significant changes to the operating model to deliver improved
gross margin by increasing productivity, and also took measures o retain and recruit drivers to manage fieet. Page 2 of
this Annual Report and Financial Statements provides a commentary on the significant programme of integration and
restructuring designed to progress the assimilation to the group of acquired businesses, and also investment in areas of
business transformation to support the strategic growth objectives of the Group.



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Overhead costs applied in arriving at Adjusted EBITDA have increased by £3.1m compared to prior year which is the result
of investment during significant transfarmation, integration and restructuring programs.

In addition to the investment in overhead expenditure described above, these efforts gave rise to:

»  Exceptignal costs in the year of £18.5m (prior year: £18.0m); and
*  Capital expenditure at a level below depreciation - the net book value of tangible fixed assets decreased by £14.6m
in the year from £76.8m to £62.2m (prior year: increased £15.7m from £61.1m to £76.8m)

The Group undertook significant integration and restructuring measures during the year which included:

* Transformation and restructuring of the Tristar and US operating models to improve gross margin;

» Advisory costs in relation to due diligence and sale process for both the UK and US business:

s Continuation of the integration programme to bring together the operatiens of Addison Lee with Tristar and Flyte
Tyme in the UK and US respectively;

e Conclusion of the reorganisation of the property portfolio, including the completion of a new facility in Peterborough
(customer experience centre) and the preparation for the move to a new Head Office in West Londan (completed in
December 2018);

* Significant restructuring activities to position the Group for the new challenges involved with being an international
group and operating at scale, including structural costs associated with setting up new contracts, building global
capabilities, related sales functionality and structures as wel| as a host of business change projects;

* Continuation of a programme to realign insurance and other contractual onerous costs.

These activities resulted in additional costs which have been classified as exceptional items.

Net funding costs In the year Increased from £22.9m in the prior year to £27,.9m for the current year. Excluding the impact
of exchange gains and losses, net finance costs increased from £22.1m to £27.9m. This increase arises from increased cost
of funding (linked to prevailing interest rate environment) and an increase in net funding to finance the above.

During the year an impairment to Goodwill was recorded of £41.0m, which wrote-off £12.2m Goodwill relating to the US
businesses and also £28.8m relating to the UK. Details are included in note 16 to the consolidated financia! statements.

This impairment to Goodwill described above, combined with the additional investment in overheads, exceptional costs
arising from continued restructuring , transformation activities within the Group and an increase in net funding costs in
the year have contributed to the increase in reported losses before taxation of £80.0m versus £27.0m in the prior year.

Events after the Balance $heet Date

Details of events occurring after the balance sheet date are provided in the Directors' report and in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Business risks

Covid-19 pandemic

In the last three weeks of March 2020, the Group witnessed unprecedented changes in the markets in which it operates
caused by the onset of the covid-1% pandemic. There were rapid and substantial reductions in passenger demand in gur
business. Government advice and policy changed rapidly, necessitating urgent discussions with many of our customers
about future service levels. The Group acted quickly and decisively to protect its ability to continue to deliver essential
transport services. The mitigating actions taken as the pandemic evolved and the UK government introduced measures
designed to curb the spread of the virus, including a lockdown, are more fully described in the Directors report.
Nevertheless, the longer-term consequences of the covid-19 pandemic for our business remain very uncertain, both
in terms of duration and impact. Accordingly, the Group is monitoring the situation carefuity.

2



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Competitive environment

The ground transportation market is highly competitive. There is a risk that a changing industry and advances in
technologies means that competitors with different business models may arise. The Group continues to invest in customer
experience and technology innovations and considers them as key drivers for growth.

Legislative risks

The majority of the drivers engaged by the Group in the UK are self-empioyed. Actions have been brought against the
Group by a small number of drivers and couriers and also against other groups using similar operating models, claiming
worker status for self-employed drivers. Addison Lee is appealing against the court decisions made against [tand continues
to monitor the progress of all these cases, studies by other parties, such as the Taylor Report issued in July 2017, and
initiatives taken by the Government.

Regulatory risks

Addison Lee is subject to industry and environmental regulation in the cities and countries in which it operates. In
particular, changes in the Landon market to the exernption of private hire vehicles from the Congestion Charge,
introduction of the Ultra Low Emission Zone Charge (ULEZ) and Toxicity Charge in 2019 require ongeing mitigation
through changes to customer and passenger contracts along with fleet composition as well as other mitigating actions.

Financial risks

Funding and liguidity risk

The Group’s operations are financed by a combination of retained profits, loan notes, lease arrangements, and bank
borrowings. Borrowings are generally raised at the Group level and lent ta subsidiaries. The Group maintains sufficient
committed borrowing facilities to meet its forecasted funding requirements,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate exposure arising from the Group's borrowing and depaosit activity is managed by using a combination of fixed
and variable rate debt instruments, and interest rate swaps.

Foreign exchange risks

Addison Lee operates directly through Its subsidiaries in the UK, the U5 and Hong Kong. It also operates indirectly through
its global network of affiliates. Transactions with customers are principally denominated in the functional currency with
the result that local entities are not exposed to significant foreign exchange transaction risk.

Following the acquisition of the Tristar and Flyte Tyme groups of companies in prior years, and Tandem in the current
period, the Group’s principal foreign exchange exposure is in the translation of net investments in its subsidiaries and the
translation of the results from the functional currency to reporting currency. Currency exposures arising from strategic
transactions such as acquisitions or loans to subsidiaries are reviewed on a case by case basis.

Credit risk

As a standard policy, all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. Trade
receivables and amounts owed by drivers are reviewed on a regular basls. Credit terms are aiso reviewed and adjusted to
manage credit related risks.



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Brexit

The UK left the European Union {(EU} on 31 January 2020 and is currently in a transition period after Brexit until 31
December 2020. The Group continues to monitor politica! activities around Brexit and will evaluate its respanses and
subsequent actions as and when there is more clarity.

On behalf of the board
p B Suter Date: 7 September 2020
Director



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The directors present their annual repart and financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2019.

Directors
The directors who held office during the vear and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:

A K Boland (resigned on 23 March 2020)

S Gordon (resighed on 23 March 2020)

P B Suter (appointed on 23 March 2020)

L Griffin {appointed on 23 March 2020)

P A Gallagher (appointed on 23 March 2020}

Accarding to the register of directors’ shareholdings, nene of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in the shares or debentures of companies of the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 12 and there is a commentary on those results in the Strategic report.

The directors do not recommend payment of a dividend {2018: £nif).

Financlal Instruments

The Group holds financial instruments relating to its funding needs that comprise ioan notes, and bank borrowings. Other
finrancial assets and liabilities, such as trade receivables, trade payables and lease liabilities arise directly from the Group’s
operations, including from acquisition of vehicles. The Group monitors value and perfoarmance of certain debt instruments
held by Addison Lee insurance Limited and The Addison Lee Purpose Trust on a fair value basis. The Group has fromtime
to time entered into derivative transactions to manage interest rate risk exposure.

rch and Development

Research and development activities continues to be undertaken in relation to booking, allocation, customer
management and conmunications systems in order to improve and enhance both the customer experience and delivery
of services.



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Disabled Persons

The Group's poficy is not to discriminate on grounds of disability and disabled workers are considered for those vacancies
that they are able to fill. All necessary assistance with initial training courses is given. Once emgployed, a career plan is
developed 50 as to ensure sultable opportunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are made, wherever possible,
for retraining employees who become disabled, ta enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their
aptitudes and abilities.

Employes Invoivement

The Group's policy is to consult and discuss with employees on matters likely to affect employees’ interests. Information
of matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to achieve a com mon
awareness on the part of all employees of the financiat and economic factors affecting the Group's performance.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

On 20 February 2020, the Addison Lee US business was sold to RMA Worldwide Chauffeured Transportation and the
business now operates in North America as a partner under the Addison Lee Brand. Loans and other intercompany
receivable balances from US business were written off as part of the sale process resulting in the provisional net loss on
disposal of £22.5m.

On 23 March 2020, the Group was acquired by consortium of investors, led by Cheyne Capital and Liam Griffin. As part of
the financial restructuring process:
* Addison Lee Midco I} Limited and Atias Bidco Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Addison Lee Midco |l Limited sold its shares in Addison Lee Financing Limited to Atlas Bidco Limited for £1;
+ Intercompany receivable and payabie balances within Addison Lee Midco I Limited with Addison Lee Financing
Limited and Addison Lee Group Limited were released in full;
Lenders released the charge over the shares of Addison Lee Financing Limited;
Lenders unconditionally and irrevocably released and discharged senior finance loans and unpaid accrued
Interest in respect of the debt, for nil consideration;
» Addison Lee Financing Limited with all its subsidiaries acceded to the new Senior Finance Agreement as new
pbligors;
+ The intercreditor agreement was entered between Atlas Bidco Limited, Addison Lee Financing Limited and each
obligor and the Lenders under the New SFA;
* Underthe new senlor finance agreement, Addison Lee Financing Limited drew down a £36m super senior facility,
recognised a new £100m senior facility and repaid the £16m Bridge funding facility;

On 30 April 2020, the Directors, in line with the revised strategy to focus its operations on the core London and UK market
while serving international demand through a network of affillate partners, decided to exit the loss-making subsidiary in
Hong Kong. We have appointed a Hong Kong insolvency practitioner and the business will be dissolved with a book loss of
up to £0.25m based on the dosing intercreditor balance of £1.9m as at 30 April 2020,

Future Develgpments

The Group wiif continue to focus on growth in its current markets by continuing to strengthen the quality of its service
offerings and by improving the overall customer experience. The Group aims to provide customers with facilities to book
managed-car services for more international locations around the world,



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Going Concern

in adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial information, the directors have considered the issues
impacting the Group during the period as detailed in the operating review on nate 2(c) and have reviewed the Group's
projected compliance with its banking covenants. Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts and operating budgets, the
directors believe that the Group will generate sufficient cash to meet its liabilities as they fail due for at least 12 months
from the approval of this report and will comply with its banking covenants. Based on the abave, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. The Group's operations are financed by a combination of retained profits, loan notes, lease and hire purchase
agreements, and bank borrowings. The Group has prepared detailed cashflow forecasts which show that it has significant
headroom within, and remains compliant with, the covenants set out in its borrowing agreements for a period of at least
12 months from the date of signing the financial statements, and will be able to meet its forecast commitments over that
period. Furthermore, there has been favourable trading in both July and August 2020 atross the various business streams,
with the courier business proving resilient and an increase in London passenger volumes. On this basis, the directors
believe that it is appropriate to prepare the accounts on a going cancern basis.

On behalf of the board

P B Suter . Date: 7 September 2020
Director



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directars to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group financial statements (consolidated financial statements) in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 the 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; and
*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

*  forthe Group's financial statements, state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- for the Company’s financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Cornpany's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor of the Company and Group is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have
taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to rake themselves aware of all relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor of the Company and Group is aware of that information. Words and
phrases used in this confirmation should be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

In accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution is to be praposed at the Annual General Meeting
to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the Company.



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

QOpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Addison Lee Financing Limited {‘the parent company’} and its subsidiaries
{the ‘group’} for the vear ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Group Consolidated Income Statement, the Group
and Parent company Balance Sheet, Group statement of cash flows, the Group statement of comprehensive income, the
Group and Parent company statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 31, including 8 summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reparting framework that has been applied in the preparatian of the group
financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:
¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 August
2019 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

= the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance in with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {i5As {UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethicat
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaired is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1 and note 30 of the consoflidated financial statements, which describe the impact on the
Group of Covid-19. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in refation to which the 1543 {UKj require us to repoct to
you where:

» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue,



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other information and, In doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required toa determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. !f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other Information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ repert for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and directors' repart have been prepared in accordance with applicable legzl requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
® certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directars’ responsibilities statement set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are rasponsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

10



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as 2 whole are free fram
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council’s website at https:/fwww frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fuilest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed.

I S R Al
3

_Philip Young {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

8 September 2020
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2019 2018
Notes £000 £'000
Revenue s 394,584 390,325
Cost of sales {294,876) (281,045)
Gross profit 99,708 109,280
Other operating income 11 - 1,216
Distribution costs {15,117} {16,336)
Administrative expenses (119,580) {80,478)
Share of profit of associate 18 19 191
Exceptional items 7 (18,505) (17,990)
Operating loss {53.475) (4,117)
Finance income 12(a) 1,428 69
Finance expenses 12(b) [27,927) -.(22,929})
Net finance costs {26,499} (22,860)
Loss before taxation {79,97a3) -~ (26,977}
Tax (charge)/credit 13 ] (540} 2,113
Loss for the year {80,514) (24,864)

All operations for the financial year are continuing. Loss for the year is attributable to the eciuitv holders of the parent
company.

12



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Loss for the year (80,514) {24,864)
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income to be reciassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods {net of tax):
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {1,924} {254)
Implementation of IFRSS ‘Financial Instruments’ {986} -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (83,428) (25,158)

All operations for the financial year are continuing. Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax, Is attributable to the
equity hotders of the parent company.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
Notes 2019 2018
£'000 £000
Assets:
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 62,165 76,822
Intangible assets 16 272,136 310,756
Investment in associate 18 734 715
Financial assets 20 (a) ‘852 1,468
Deferred tax assets 25 . 1,189 2,524
3371076 392,235
Current assets ) o
Inventories 19 211 194
Trade and other receivables 20 (d) 43,514 46,887
Financial assets 20 (b} 8,840 9,444
Income tax receivable 503 648
Cash and cash equivalents 20 (c) 8,357 1,687
61,825 58,860
Non-current assets held for disposal 15 - 2,550
Total assets 398,901 453,695
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (e) (47,371) (44,124)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 20 (f) (270,737} (64,939}
Income tax payable - (103)
Right of use liabilities 21 {19,645} {21,812)
(337,753) {130,984}
Non-current llabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 20 (f) (86,883) {259,731)
Provisions 23 (9,362) (9,859)
Right of use labilities 21 (30,175) {34,281}
Deferred tax liabilities 25 - {688)
{126,420) '(304,559)
Total liabilities {464,173) _ {435,543)
Net {liabilities)/assets {65,272) 18,152
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

2019 2018
Notes £'000 £'000
Equity
Share capital 26 476 476
Share premium 47,083 47,083
Foreign currency translation reserve (1,952) (28)
Retained losses {110,879) (29,379)
Total shareholders’ (deficit)/equity {65,272) 18,152

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 7 September 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

P B Sut
Director

15



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
Issued share Share Retained Foreign Total
capital premium losses currency
translation
reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2017 476 47,083 {4,515) 266 43,310
Loss for the year (24,864) - {24,864)
Forelgn exchange translation - - (294) (294)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (24,864) {294} {25,158)
At 31 August 2018 475 47,083 [{29,379) (z8) 18,152
1oss for the year (80,514} {80,514)
Iimplementation of IFRS ‘Financiat
Instruments’ (986) (986)
Foreign exchange translation . (1,924} {1,924)
Total comprehensive lpss for the year (81,500} (1.524) (83,424)
AT 31 August 2019 476 47,083 {110,879) {1,952) {65,272)

16



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

Loss for the year

Adjustment for:

Tax charge/{credit)

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amartisation of intangible assets
Impairment of intangible assets

Fair value gains

Share of profit of associate

Finance income

Finance cost

Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in inventory
Decrease/{increase)} in receivables
Increase in payables
{Decrease}/increase in provisions
Cash generated from operations

Interest received

interest paid

Income taxes received

Net cash flows from gperating activitles

Investing activities

Purchase of intangibie assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Praceeds from sale of a subsidiary

Dividends received from associates '

Proceeds from/{acquisition of} financial instruments
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings — leases
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) In cash and ¢ash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2019 2018
£'000 £°000
(80.514) {24,864)
540 (2,113)
30,491 28,589
12,397 10,276
41,000 762
. (1,216)
{19) (191)
(L428) (69)
27,927 22,929
{4,853) -
3,223 (3,141)
(17) (25)
4,528 {2,917}
3,692 5,315
(497) 319
36,870 33,654
1,428 65
(11,572} {12,747)
155 1,224
26,881 22,200
(14,716) (18,994}
(26,308) (66,313}
2,109 24,968
- 4,277
4,449 -
- 120
1,221 {234}
(33,245) {64,730)
31,636 7,511
(4,028} -
25,001 48,928
_ {34,248) (37,351)
18,361 19,088
11,997 (23,442)
{2,786) {243}
{854) 22,831
8,357 {854)




ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

1L Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of Addison Lee Financing Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, "the Group”| for the year ended 31 August 2019 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 7 September 2020. Addison Lee Financing Limited (“the Company” or “the parent”} is a limited company
incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is lacated at The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London
WZ 1AF.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of ground transportation activities including private-hire and
managed vehicles, executive cars and chauffeuring services, airport transfers, coaches hire, transportation for
events and deliveries and courier services, and the ownership and rental to third parties of motor vehicles.

The list of subsidiaries held within the Group structure is provided in note 17. Information on other related party
relationships of the Group is pravided in note 28,

2. Significant accounting policies
a} Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS] and {FRS Interpretation Committee adapted for use in the European Unian and complies with Article
4 of the EU International Accounting Standard (IAS) Regulation and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Investment
properties and certain financial instrurments measured at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied except where notad.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in British Pound Sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand pounds {£'000), except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions. [t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement and complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

18



ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

b)

c}

Significant accounting policies {coatinued)

Basis of consolidation

The Group’s annual consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Addison Lee Financing

Limited and its subsidiaries presented as a single economic entity. In the prior year,

- the Group's annual consolidated financial statements comprised Addison Lee Midca N Ltd and its subsidiaries,
including Addison Lee Financing Limited;

- the Addison Lee Financing Limited financial statements were prepared in accordance with the requirements of
FRS104; )

- There are no material differences on the financial statement of the Company and accordingly reconciliation pf
differences between FR$101 and FRS 102 is not provided.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect thase
returns through its power over the entity.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee;
- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circurnstances indicated that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of contro! above. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group abtains

control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses cantrol of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the related assets (including goodwili),
liabilities, non-controiling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or ioss is recognised in
profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and lfabillties, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between group members are eliminated on consolidation. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Going concern

Covid-19 has had a significant impact on trading:

The UK “lockdown” especially in London, in the months from March 2020 to May 2020 had a massive impact on core
Business-tg-Business {"B28") business, volumes for which were down around 60% through June 2020 versus the
same months in the prior year;

Business-to-Consumer {"B2C”} trading was heavily impacted due to lackdown of hospitality/leisure/travel, this
particularly impacted evening and weekend trading, resulting in volumes continuing to be down ¢. 70% through June
2020;
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
2. Significant accounting policies [continued)
t) Gaing concern {continued)
e  Aggressive efforts were launched ta mitigate the impact of Covid-19 that delivered around £25m cash flow saving
{versus run-rate before Covid-19) from Aprit 2020 through August 2020 via:
- Nearly 800 fult time employees were furloughed including 378 PAYE drivers;
- Thorough review of 3rd party supplier spends delivered £560k per month of saving of which £260k is
expected to continue even when volumes fully return;
- Cash savings via deferral of VAT, PAYE and National Insurance payrments using Government Covid-19
initiatives — peaking at £8.1m deferred end of June 2020,
- Non-essential capital expenditure stopped;
- Deferral of vehicle lease payments over 3 to 6§ months, much of which is paid for through equivalent
extensions to contracts at low or no costs to the business. Additiona! run rate savings through release of
over 450 executive cars at end of their contract between March and September 2020;
- Property lease “holiday” and deferrals to support cash flow during reduced trading due to Covid-19
lockdown and resultant economic malaise;
=~ Redundancy programme underway;
- d-year Business Plan devetoped which refiects the best estimate of the Directors of the trajectory of
recovery, albeit in a time of unprecedented uncertainty
Considering the ongoing impatt of Covid-19 combined with high operational gearing, to support the delivery of the a-
year Business Plan, existing shareholders and lenders have agreed to provide additional funding of £20m, which is
comprised of additional debt and equity.
In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the consolidated and Company financlal statements, the directors
have considered the issues impacting the Group and have reviewed the Group’s projected compliance with its banking
covenants. Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts and operating budgets, the directors believe that the Group will
generate sufficient cash to meet its labilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements and comply with its banking covenants. Accordingly, the adoption of the going concern basis
remains appropriate.
d) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. On the
acquisition of a subsidiary, fair vafues reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition are attributed to the identifiable
separable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Where the total consideration is different to the fair
value of the identifiable separable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired, the difference Is treated as
purchase goodwill and capitalised, or a bargain purchase gain and recognised in the income statement. Contingent
payments are remeasured at fair vaiue through the income statement. Alt transaction costs are recognised in the
income statement as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent

conditions as at the acquisition date.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
the acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

e}

f)

Significant acocounting policles (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised consistent with the transfer of promised services te customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-
price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
progoertion of the total services to be provided. This is determined based on an allocation of the transaction price to
each perfarrmance obligation.

The transaction price is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes.

The Group operates two different business arrangements for its "Accounts” and “Non-accounts” business. The Group
is deemed to be the principal for accounting purposes under both arrangements, as explained below:

Account

Revenue from "Account” business arises from customers who are registered and hold an account with one of the
Group companies. The Group establishes prices and contracts directly with these customers to provide services
including private-hire and courier deliveries. The responsibility for delivering on the performance obligations
uitimately remains with the Group.

The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue from this arrangement since it Is the primary
obligor in all these arrangements. Revenue is recognised when the service has been provided.

Non-account

Non-account revenues relate to bookings by individuals or businesses who do not hald an account with one of the
Group companies. Under this arrangement the individuals or businesses contract directly with a private-hire or
courier driver, and the Group receives a booking fee from drivers in return for allocating the job.

Under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Group has concluded that, for accounting purposes, it is
the principal in all of its revenues from the non-account arrangement and has recognised the full value of the service
rather than the booking fee. Revenue is recognised when the service has been provided

Other revenue streams
Revenue from the rental of vehicles to drivers and associated motor reimbursement services, advertising services
and other ancillary and related setvices is recognised on a time apportioned basis.

Insurance premium income

Under the annuai basis of actounting, premium written comprises the premiums due on contracts entered into
during a financial year, regardless of whether such amounts may relate in whole or in part to a later financial
year, exclusive of taxes levied on premiums.

Finance income and expenses

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset,

Interest income and expense are included in finance income in the income statement.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

h)

Significant Accounting pelicies [continued)

Exceptional items

The directors consider transactions to be disclosed as exceptional items if individually or, if of a similar type, in
aggregate, are one-off and non-recurring in nature or they are of sufficient size that failure to separately disclose
their impact would misrepresent the underlying trading performance of the Group. The exceptional items are
presented in the consolidated income statement in accordance as to whether the related exceptional itern was part
of the ordinary operating activities of the Group.

Income tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

® When the deferred tax liability arises from the initlal recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

* Inrespectof taxabie temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Peferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wili
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

®  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised

Ceferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settied, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
2. Significant accounting policies {(continued)
i} Property, piant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cast or valuation of assets lass their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the unexpired term of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equipment Up to 3 years
Motor vehicles Up to 4 years
Coaches Up to 10 years
Right-of-use lease assets Over the lease term
1) Investment properties
investment properties are properties held to earn rental income and for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fajr value, Fair value is determined annually by independent valuers taking into account market
conditions at the reporting date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the income statement
in the pericd in which they arise, together with the corresponding tax effect.
k} Goodwill

Gogdwill is Initially measured at cost {being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and fiabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acguired and all
of the liahilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected 1o benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the aperation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operatian and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Goodwill is assigned an indefinite useful economic life. Impairment reviews are performed annually, or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. impairment
lasses recognised on goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated armortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs and intellectual property, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the income staterment in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred,

The usefut lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting peried. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the Income statement fn the expense category that is consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

Intangibie assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or within a cash-generating unit. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the Indefinite life continues to be supportable, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a grospective basis.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software and IT deveiopment expenditures incurred on an individual
project are capitalised as an intangible asset when the group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the asset
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when the asset is
available for use by the business. it is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impalrment annualty.

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software is recognised
as an intangible asset. Computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software as intended by management.

The intangibles held by the Group and the useful lives over which they are amortised are as follows:

Software and IT development Straight line basis, up to 3 years

Patents Straight line basis over 5 years
Brands Indefinite life (not amortised)
Customer relationships Straight line basis over 12 years

24



2.

ADDISON LEE FiNANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

n)

=1

Significant accounting policies (continued}
Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may have suffered an impaired loss.
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated, and compared to the carrying amount, in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverabie amount of the cash-generating unit ta which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair vatue less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing the value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thalr present value using a using a pre-tax discount rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. o determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be Jess than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the income Statement in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset, except far properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to other comprehensive income, For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous
revaluation.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss be recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. As reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income in the reporting
pericd. Impairment losses recognised in respect of goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Associates

An associated undertaking is an entity aver which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating palicy decisions of the investee, but is not contro! or joint control
over those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. Subsequent measurement presented in the consolidated financial statements inciudes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition reserves of the assoclate less dividends received and provision for
impairment.

Profit and loss arising from transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interest in the associate. The Group's share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

o}

)

Significant accounting poficies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost consists of ail costs of purchase, costs of
conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing each product to its present focation and condition. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any further costs expected to be incurred
in the sale process.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of anather entity.

Financial instruments are recognised in the Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are accounted for at the trade date.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or 35 derivatives. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value, or in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financiaf assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit ar loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Assets that are managed on a fair value basis in accordance with management policies, are measured at fair value
through profit and less.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If coliection is expected in one year or less or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer, they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivable are initially recognised at fair value and do not carry any Interest and are stated at
nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecaverable amount.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the income statement. Losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the income statement in finance costs for foans and in cost of sales or other operating
expenses for receivables.
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2. Significant accounting policies {continued}

—

p} Financial instruments {continued)

Cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deemed deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liablilties and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are initially recognised at fair value and classified according to the
substance of the contractual agresment entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest In the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are measured
at the proceeds received, net of direct issued costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability s discharged or cancelled or expires.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedging
Derivatives are initialiy recognised at fair vafue at the dates the contract are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in income statement immediately.

A derivative with a pasitive fair value is recognised as a financial asset, whereas a derivative with a negative fair
value is recognised as a financial liability.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing foans and overdrafts are initially recognised at fair value, which equates to proceeds less issue
costs at inception, Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method. Any differences between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount
due on settlement is recognised in the income statement over the tarm of the borrowings.
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q)

n

s}

Significant accounting poficies (continued)
Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Sterling which is the Company's functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies within each entity in the Group are transiated into functional
currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, which are held at the year end are transiated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate as at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the
tncome Statement In the period in which they arise, except where these exchange differences form part of a net
investment in overseas subsidiaries of the Group, in which case such differences are taken directly to the foreign
currency translation reserve.

Transiation of the results of overseas businesses

The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated into the Group’s presentation currency of British Pound
Sterling each month at the average exchange rate for the month. The average exchange rate is used, as it is
considered to approximate the actual exchange rates on the date of the transactions. The assets and liabifities of
such undertakings are translated at the year end exchange rates. Differences arising on the retranslation of the
opening net investment in subsidiary companies, and on the translation of their results, are taken directly to the
foreign currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of a past
event, It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the
obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provisicn is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertalnties surrounding the abligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate pre-tax discount rate,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
t) Employee benefits
The expected costs of accumulating paid absences are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement when
the employees render services that increase their entitiement to future paid absences. In the case of non-
accumulating paid absences, costs are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement when the absences
oceur.
s} Post-retirement benefits
The Group contributes to various defined contribution schemes for the benefit of its employees. Contributions
payable are charged to the Income Statement as an expense as they fall due.
v) Addison Lee Purpose Trust

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Addison Lee Purpose Trust, an entity
controlled by the Group.

The Trust has been established exclusively for the purpose of providing benefits to drivers {"Contributors"}, in
connection with contracts with one or more Group entities, by making funds availabie out of a Trust Fund for the
payment or reimbursement of costs, expenses or other losses incurred by or for the benefit of Contributors in
the course of driving pursuant to, or in connection with, contracts between Contributers and any one or more of
the Group entities identified in the Trust instruments.

Contributions receivable are accounted for on an accruals basis, Motor reimbursements paid relate to payments
made in respect of a self-insured reimbursement agreement between Group Entities and motor insurers which
provides for the reimbursement to each fronting insurer the deductible payabie under the relevant motor
insurance cover provided by each fronting insurer to Contributors and Group Entities (“Reimbursement
Agreements”). Provision for motor reimbursements comprises the estimated deductible element of the cost of
motor claims which have been incurred but not yet paid on behalf of the insurer at the Staterment of Financial
Position date, whether reported to insurers or not, based en information provided by insureds, insurers, and loss
adjusters and on previous loss experience. The deductible element will be liable to be reimbursed under the
Reimbursement Agreements as and when the underlying claim costs are paid. Revenue represents contributions
receivable less motor reimbursements paid and provisions made for motor reimbursements.

Certain of the Trust's investments, cash and cash equivalents and accrued investment income are subject to

security interest agreements in favour of third parties (see note 20 {a} and (b}). Certain investments held by the
Trust are managed on a fair value basis.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

Addison Lee Insurance Limited

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of a wholly owned subsidiary,
Addison Lee Insurance Limited, whose principal activity is that of an insurance captive. Addison Lee Insurance
Limited is registered with the appropriate regulatory authorities in Guernsey to engage in insurance contracts.

Revenue

Premium income is recognised as premium written less unearned premiums. Premium written comprises the
premiums due on contracts entered into during a financial year, regardless of whether such amounts may relate
in whole or in part to a later financial year, exclusive of taxes levied on premiums. Unearned premiums represent
the proportion of premiums written which is estimated to be earned in future financial years, computed
separately for each insurance contract using the daily pro-rata method. Premium income net of ¢laims incurred
are recognised as insurance income in the consolidated income statement.

Claims outstanding and incurred but not reported reserve {IBNR)
Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the estimated cost of settling all claims incurred up to, but not paid
at, the balance sheet date whether reported or not, together with the relevant claims settlement expenses.

Provisions for claims are based on the best estimate of the present value of liabilities based on the information
currently available to the Group. The methods used, and estimates made, are continually reviewed and any
resulting adjustments are reported in the income statement in the financial year in which they are made. IBNR
reserves are initially provided to the expected loss ratio of 100%, and kept under review and revised on an on-
going basis in accordance with projected losses for that particular year.
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x}

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Adoption of new and revised standards

Inthe current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” for the first time, The nature and effect
of these changes are disclosed below,

IFRS 9 “Financiaf instruments”

IFRS 9 impacts on the Group through the introduction of a new impairment medel approach to the valuation
and presentation of trade receivables and lease receivables. This means that the Group is required ta reflect a
provision for expected future losses against trade receivables and lease receivables at the point of recognition of
the initial asset instead of an incurred loss-model where specific provisions are made as required on individual
losses. The Group has apglied the new accounting requirements of IFRS 9 *Financia! instruments” far the first
time this year. The effect on initial application was recognition of expected credit loss pravisian of £3.1m of which
£2.1m was recognised in the current year in consaolidated income statement and £1.0m was recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

IFRS 15 Revenue fram Cantracts with Customers

The international Accounting Standards Board {IASB) issued International Financial Reporting Standard 15 (IFRS
15) Revenue from Contracts with Customers which replaces IAS 18 Revenue. The standard destribes the
principles that an entity must apply to measure and recognise revenue and related cash flows and introduces
new guidance on identifying principals and agents to contracts. IFRS 15 has been endorsed for application in the
EU effective from 1 January 2018. The Group elected to adopt {FRS 15 from the financial year ended 31 August
2017 and continues to do so for the current year.

IFRS 16 Leases

The JASB issued IFRS 16 Leoses on 13 January 2016 which replaces IAS 17 Lecses. The standard has been
adopted into EU-IFRS effective from 1 January 2019, and early adoption is permitted provided IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts from Customers has been applied.

IFRS 16 introduces a single recognition and measurement model for all leases. Lessees are required 10 account
for all leases on the statement of financial position, including those which had previously been treated as

operating leases and accounted for in the income statement as in-year expense.

The Group had elected to adopt IFRS 16 early and apply the provisions of the standard in the preparation of the
31 August 2017 year ended consciidated financial statements and continues to do so for the current year,
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Alternative performance measures

The directors assess the performance of the Group using a variety of alternative performance measures to
provide additional usefu! information to the members and stakehalders of the Group. These measures
principally highlight underlying trends and performance, or function as key performance indicators. These
measures are not defined under IFRS and therefore termed ‘non-GAAP measures’. Non-GAAP measures are
not designed to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures, and may not be directly comparable to
performance measures used by other entities.

The non-GAAP measures used are as follows:

a) Exceptional items

The directors consider transactions to be disclosed as exceptional items if individually or, if of a similar type,
in aggregate, are one-off and non-recurring in nature or they are of sufficient size that failure to separately
disclose their impact would misrepresent the underiying trading performance of the Group. The exceptional
items are presented in the consolidated income statement in accordance as to whether the related
exceptional item was part of the ordinary operating activities of the Group

b} Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is 4 measure of the underlying operating profit. The measure excludes exceptional, other non-
recurring items, interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and a number of other income and expenditure
items.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined in the Senior Facility Agreement under which a consortium of banks provide credit

facilities to the Group, and is therefore a key indicator of the Group's liquidity. Further details are provided in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4, Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
SQurces.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
fiabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below. The judgement used by management in the
application of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of these key areas of estimation are considered to be
most significant.

«  The Group is required to measure all assets and liabilities acquired as part of a business combination at fair
value. The determination of those fair value of those assets requires judgement. The valuation of current
and financial assets and liabilltles is not a key source of estimation uncertainty. However, the valuation of
non-current assets and liabilities is dependent on, and sensitive to, long-term forecasts of related cash flows
and discount rates applied, These are in turn dependent on long-term forecasts of the performance of the
business. As such the valuation of these assets and liabilities is considered a key source of judgement.

« Software development expenditure is capitalised In accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technical and economic feasibility is
confirmed, usually when a product deveiopment project has reached a defined milestone according to an
established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised management makes
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits.

* The Group is required to estimate the cost of settling ail motor insurance claims incurred up to, but not paid
at, the balance sheet date whether reported or not, which is considered a key source of judgement, Provisions
for claims are based upon the information currently available to the directors, and subisequent infarmation
and events may show that the ultimate liability is less than, or in excess of, the amount provided.

* Theclassification of items as exceptional requires significant judgement to determine whether items are part
of normal operating activities. Further details are set out in note 7.

* The Group is required to test goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually by
determining the recoverabie amount of each cash-generating unit {CGU} from value-in-use calculations,
which are based on cash flow projections derived from the most recent budgets and long-term plans. in
carrying out this test, management rnakes assumptions on projectec future cash flows, long term growth
rates and discount rates applied to future cash flows.

* The Group is required to assess the recoverability of deferred tax assets in line with future trading and the

availability of taxable profits. As explained in note 25, the Group has detided not to recognise any deferred
tax assets in respect of certain losses in the UK and US.
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5. Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

Private car services, delivery and courier service:
Account
Non-Account

insurance and reimbursement policies

Rental of motor vehicles

Investment property rental

Revenue analysed by geographical market

United Kingdom
United States
Rest of the World

6. Loss for the year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging/{crediting):

Auditors remuneration {note 9)

Amortisation and impairment charge

Depreciation charge

Exceptional items

Net foreign exchange (gains}/losses

Profit on disposal of a subsidiary (note 17)

Loss/{profit) on disposal of fixed assets {motor vehicles)

34

2019 2018
£'000 £000
256,450 254,786
92,484 95,267
637 695
44,998 39,487
—___ 1. %
394,584 390,325
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
309,922 304,510
81,779 82,642
2,883 3173
394,584 390,325
2019 2018
£000 £000

575 -
53,397 11,038
30,491 28,589
18,505 17,950
(1,362) 746
(a,453) -
3,223 (3,142)
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7. Exceptional items

2019 2018

£'000 £000

Acquisition integration costs {1} 3,551 2,939
Legal and professional fees {2} 1,315 803
Rebranding costs {3) 529 835
Restructuring {4) 11,378 9,451
Insurance costs (5) 1,732 2,162
Write-off of irrecoverable current assets {6) 1,800
18,505 17,950

Exceptional items are amounts arising that materially affect the Group’s results. These include major one-off
restructaring costs and costs relating o acquisition of Group entities.

{1) Various costs were incurred during the current year to integrate the Tandem, Flyte Tyme and Tristar
businesses, including project management, temporary resources and travel;

(2} Legal and professional fees related to legal matters of a non-recurring nature;

{3) Costs related to the first major rebranding in the UK since the business commenced and subsequently in the
US and spanned the financial year-end;

{4} Substantial restructuring costs were incurred to transform the business operations covering property, people
and change. Costs included staff redundancies, duplicate property costs, third party costs, and set-up costs
assaciated with establishing new operating models;

IS} These costs include the determination of the onerous element of US motar insurance premiums in the year;

{6) These costs represent the write-off in prior year of non-recurring irrecoverable current assets principally
related to credit card transactions.

8. Adjusted EBITDA

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Operating loss (53,475) (4,117}
Add back:
Exceptional items 18,505 17,990
Other non-recurring items - internal labour 1,717 4,651
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30,491 28,589
Amortisation of intangible assets 12,397 10,276
{impairment of intangible assets 41,000 762
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 3,223
Less;
Gains on disposals of property, plant and equipment . {3,141)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (4,453) -
Fair value gains - ~_{L216)
Adjusted EBITDA 49,405 53,804
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9, Auditors remuneration

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Fees payable to the Group's auditor for:
Audit of the Group financial statements 575 .
575 -

All the UK subsidiaries as set out in note 17 {a), are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating
to the audit of individual statutory accounts under section 479a of the Companies Act 2006. In the prior year
auditor's remuneration was disclosed in the audited consolidated accounts of the ultimate UK parent company,
Addison Lee Holdings Limited.

10. Employees

The average monthly number of persons including directors employed by the Group during the year was:

fa} Employee numbers 2019 20138
Number Number

Administration 772 645
Distribution 1,122 1,622
1,894 2,267

2019 2018

{b} Employment costs £'000 £000
Wages and salaries 62,032 65,771
Social security costs 5,408 6,027
Pension costs - defined contribution schemes . 911 599
68,351 72,397
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11. Other operating income

2019 2018

£000 £'000

Gain on interest rate swaps at fair value through profit or loss (1] - 1,166
Change in fair value of investment propertias - 50
- 1,216

{1} In the prior year gains and losses on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss relate
to fair value movements on interest rate swaps contracts that were not designated as hedging instruments
and do not qualify for hedge accounting. There were no financial instruments in the current financial year,

12. Net finance costs

2019 2018
£'000 £'00C
(a) Finance income
Bank and other interest 66 69
Exchange gains in relation to foreign currency loans 1,362 _
1,428 69
{b) Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings {13,175) {14,300}
Interest on loan notes and other borrowings (11,983) {5,373}
Ifmance charges payable on hire purchase and finance lease {251) (506}
liabilities
Finance charges payable on operating laase liabilities (2.228) (1.694)
Bank monitoring credits/(costs) [250) (270)
Debt issue costs {40) {20}
Exchange losses in refation to financing activities ] - {745)
{27,927) {22,929)
Net finance costs {26,439) {22,860)
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13. Tax{charge)/credit

2019 2018
Recognised in the income statement E'000 £'000
Current Income tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period {92) {109)
Corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods 200 562
107 453
Deferred tox:
Deferred tax for the current period (174) 1,829
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior periods [473) {169)
(647} 1,660
Tax {charge)/credit reported in the income statement (S40) 2,113

UK income tax is caiculated at 19.00% (2018: 19.00%) of the assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Tax (charge)/credit for the year can be reconciled to accounting profit as follows:

2019 2018

£7000 £°000
Accounting ioss before incorme tax (79,974} (26,977)
Income tax credit at rates prevailing in the UK of 19.00%
(2018: 19.00%) 15,185 5,125
Adjustment in respect of prior years (273) 393
Expenses not deductible {9.,133) 357
Income not taxable 940 .
UK tax rate changes {157) -
Effects of overseas tax rate changes 2,194 1,466
Effect of tax rate change on deferred tax : 301
Group relief (2.389) (978)
Fixed asset timing differences 62 429
Deferred tax not recognised {6,979) {4,899)
Other tax adjustments - (81)
Tax (charge)/credit reported in the income statement {540) 2,113

The standard rate of UK corporation tax is 19% and this tock effect from 1 April 2017. The 2016 Finance Act
introduced a UK corporation tax rate of 17% from 1 April 2020. Accordingly, these rates are applicable in the
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 August 2019. Deferred tax has been provided at 17% being
the rate at which temporary differences are expected to reverse.

Haowever, the Budget which took place on 11 March 2020 confirmed the rate of corporation tax will remain at 19%
from 1 April 2020, cancelling the enacted rate reduction te 17%. The rate reduction reversal was substantively
enacted on 17 March 2020 by way of a special resolution. Accordingly, these rates are applicable in the
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 August 2019.
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14. Property, Plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 September 2017
Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposals
Reclassifications
Exchange differences
At 31 August 2018
Additions

Disposals
Reclassifications
Exchange differences
At 31 August 2019

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 September 2017
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Depreciation charge for the year
In respect of disposals
Reclassifications

Exchange differences

At 31 August 2018

Depreciation charge for the year
in respect of disposals
Reclassification

Exchange differences

At 31 August 2019

Net book vatue

At 31 August 2017
At 31 August 2018
At 31 August 2018

Leasehold Fixtures, Motor Total
fand and fittings and vehicles
buiidings equipment
£'000 £'000 €000 £'000
15,967 20,017 94,178 130,162
13,131 2,566 50,616 66,313
197 . - 197
{2,621} {121) {62,252} {64,994)
. (1,378) - (1,378)
13 1 714 728
26,687 21,085 83,256 131,028
783 1,126 24,399 26,308
(1,678) (215) {38,006) {39,899)
267 12 370 649
311 330 1,048 1,689
26,370 22,338 71,067 119,775
24,345 14,856 49,897 69,098
94 99
2,502 3,080 23,007 28,589
{2,457) - (41,340} 143,797)
- {370) - (370)
15 6l 516 592
4,499 17,627 32,080 54,206
3,058 2,538 24,895 30,491
{1,678) {215)  (26,096) {27,989)
267 {1,010) 370 {373)
159 611 505 1,275
6,305 19,551 31,754 57,610
11,622 5,161 44,281 61,064
22,188 3,458 51,176 76,822
20,065 2,787 39,313 62,165
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Right-of-use assets

tncluded within property, plant and machinery are right-of-use assets, which consist of assets arising from operating
lease arrangements accounted for under IFRS 16, finance lease agreements and hire purchase agreements:

Leasehold FI::II?ES, Motor Totai
land and ings vehicles
buildings and
equipme
nt
£000 £°000 £000 £'000
Carrying value at 31 August 2017 8,629 62 41,898 50,589
Acquisition of subsidiaries net 104 - - 104
Additions 12,451 31 50,604 63,086
Depreciation charge for the year (2,277} {59) (22,050} (24,386)
Lease compietion/net disposals {18) - {20,48%) {20,503)
Exchange differences (4) - {73} 77
Carrying value at 31 August 2018 18,885 34 49,894 68,813
Additions - 2,998 24,103 27,101
Depreciation charge for the year {2,566) [2,045) (24,916) {29,527}
Lease completion/net disposals - - {11,002) {11,002}
Exchange differences 128 - 492 620
Carrying value at 31 August 2019 16,447 o987 38,571 56,005
Interest expense on lease liabilities are detailed on note 12.
15. Investment property and non-current assets held for dispasal
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
At beginning of year 2,550 2,500
Net gain from fair value changes 50
Disposals {2,550}
At end of year - 2,550

The subsidiary which held the investment property was sold during the financial year. See note 17.

During the year the Group recognised rental income of £15,000 {2018: £9¢,000). There were no significant direct
operating expenses incurred in relation to the investment property during the period (2018: £nil).
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16. Intangible assats

Goodwill Software Patents Customer Total
and IT lists, brands
development and other
intangibles
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 September 2017 293,502 31,952 1,207 19,937 346,598
Additions - 18,916 78 - 18,994
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 5,760 - . 5,760
Disposals . {1,047} - (1.047)
Reclassification - 428 - - 428
Exchange differences 25 338 - {a4) 319
At 31 August 2018 293,527 56,347 1,285 19,893 371,052
Additions - 14,716 : - 14,716
Reclassification - {649} - - (649)
Exchange differences 59 6524 . 619 1,302
At 31 August 2019 293,586 71,038 1,285 20,512 386,421
Amortisation and Impairment .
At 1 September 2017 30,850 17,037 600 1,438 49,925
Amortisation charge for the year - 9,487 238 551 10,276
Impairment . 762 . 762
Reclassifications - {737) 157 (580)
Exchange differences {7} {95) - 15 (87)
At 31 August 2018 30,843 26,454 838 2,161 60,296
Amortisation charge for the year - 12,179 218 - 12,397
impairment 41,000 . - - 41,000
Reciassifications - 373 - - 373
Exchange differences 59 75 - 85 219
At 31 August 2019 71,902 39,081 1,056 2,246 114,285
Net book value
At 31 August 2017 262,652 14,915 607 18,499 296,673
At 31 August 2018 262,684 29,893 47 17,732 310,756
At 31 August 2019 221,684 31,957 229 18,266 272,136
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16.

Intangible assets (continued})

The Group tests goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually, or more frequently if
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may have suffered an impaired loss.

The Group has two CGUs for the financial year ended 31 August 2019. Both the UK and US operations are managed
as single units by their dedicated management teams, and in the UK and US, there are two separate brands,
Addison Lee and Tristar.

The Group has determined the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (CGU) from value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculations are based on cash flow projections derived from the most recent
budget and detailed plans for the next five years as approved by management, with projections extended out to
seven years (by assuming growth from years three to five continues up to and including year seven), with a
terminal growth rate fram year eight. The resultant cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate
appropriate for the relevant cash-generating unit.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations Is allocated at acquisition, or subsequent reorganisation, to the CGU
that is expected to benefit from the business combination.

As a result of the disposal of the US business and change of controt in the UK, as well as intensive competition and
the current uncertain economic environment, the Group has recognised an impairment of £41,000,000 as at 31

August 2019 {2018: nil}, £12,175,000 relating to US operations and £28,825,000 relating to UK operations.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets net of Geodwill impairment are as follows:

us UK Total
As at 31 August 2019 operations operations
£000 £'000 £'000
Goodwill - 221,684 221,684
Other intangibles - 3,600 3,600
- 225,284 225,284
Discount rates applied to future cash flows 13.5% 12.7%
us UK Total
As at 31 August 2018 . operations operations
£'000 £'000 £'000
Goodwill 12,175 250,509 262,684
Other intangibles - 3,600 3,600
12,175 254,109 266,284
Discount rates applied to future cash flows 13.5% 12.7% ‘
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18. intangible assets (continued)

Following the disposal of US business on 20 February 2020 and change of control in the UK, fair value
remeasurement of acquired assets and liabilities may result in material change in carrying value of goodwill and
other intangible assets. The Group will perform detailed purchased price allocation calculations and adjustment
in carrying value of goodwill and other intangible will be made accordingly. :

Key assumptions used In value-in-use calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Projected future cash flows

Sales volumes and growth rates for the next five years are derived from management estimates for the business
in which each CGU ogerates. Sales volumes and growth rates projections have been extended aut to sever years
(by assuming growth from years three to five continues up to year seven) and are based on past experience and
management expectation of future changes in the market.

Growth rates used for periods heyond those covered by monagement’s detailed plans
Growth rates are derived from management estimates which take into account the long-term nature of the
industry and long-term growth in gross domestic product of the territories in which the CGU operates. For the

purpose of impairment testing a conservative approach has been used based on a growth rate of 2.0% growth
per annum.

Discount rates applied to future cash flows

Discount rates reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU
and represent the return that investors would require for an investment with cash flows and risk profile equivalent
to those of the CGU.

The Group's pre-tax weighted average costs of capital {(WACC) has been used as the foundation for determining
the discount rates to be applied. The WACC has then been adjusted to reflect risks specific to the CGU not already
reflacted in the cash lows for that CGU.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has undertaken sensitivity testing on its calculations and concluded that no reasonably foreseeable
change in key assumptions used in the impairment calculations would result in a significant impairment charge being
recognised in the consolidated financial statements,
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17. Subsidiaries
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

3) Subsidiary undertakings Incorporated {and with place of business) in the England & Wales

Company % equity
registration interest {1)
Name of undertaking number Nature of business 2019 2018

Registered office at The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London W2 1AF:

Addison Lee Limited 01205530 Private mini cab hire 100 100
Addison Lee Group Umited (1) 08486720 Holiding company 100 100
Addison Lee Coaches Limited (2) 05822489 Property investment - 100
Addison Lee Services Limited 07305923 Administration services 100 100
Blueback Limited 06377529 Private mini ¢ab hire 100 100
Eventech Limited 03229417 Rental of motor vehicles 100 100
Professional IT {Logistics) Limited 03806233 Saftware development 100 100
Seela Limited 08167525 Rentat of motor vehicles 100 100
W1l Cars Limited 08048025 Private mini cab hire 100 100

Registered office at Unit 1 Horton Road, West Drayton, Middiesex, UB7 88Q:

Aptus Worldwide Limited 06325936 Provider of ground transportation 100 100
Bodycove Limited 03292923 Holding company 100 100
Project Tristar Limited 06434912 Provider of global chauffeur services 100 100

Registered office at Frodsham Business Centre, Bridge Lune, Frodsham, Cheshire, WAGS 7FZ;

Prestige Daily Rentals & Vehicle 08933821 Provider of car rentals 100 100
Solutions Limited
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17. Subsidiaries {continued)

b) Subsidlary undertakings incorporated (and with place of business) in the United States

% equity
interest (1)

Name of undertaking Nature of business 2019 2018
Registered principol office: 50 McKee Drive, Mahwah, New Jersey 07430

American Limousine LLC Provider of ground transportation 100 100
America Transportation Holdings LLC Provider of ground transportation 100 100
Flyte Line Transportation LLC Provider of ground transportation 100 100
Registered principal office: 16517-16521 Arminta Street, Van Nuys, California 91406

ATH Transport LLC Provider of ground transportation 100 100

Registered agent office at Corporation Frust Centre, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Deloware 19801:

Addison Lee Inc. Private mini cab hire 100 190
Tristar Chauffeur Management Inc. Provider of global chauffeur services 100 100
Tristar Services (US) Inc. Provider of glabal chauffeur services 100 100
Transportation Technology Services US lnc. Software development 100 100

c) Subsidiary undertakings incorporated in rest of the world

Country of % equity
incorporation interest {1)

Name of undertaking and place of Nature of business 2019 2018
business

Registered offices at: Heritage Hall, Le Marchant Street, St Peter Port, Guernsey GVY1 4JH.

The Addison Lee Purpose Trust (3) Guernsey Purpose Trust - -
Addison Lee Insurance Limited Guernsey Insurance captive 100 100
Addison Lee Trustee Limited Guernsey Trustee company 100 100

Registered office ar Suite 1901-02, 19™ Fioor, Lever Tech Centre, No. 69-71 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Tristar Worldwide Asia Limited Hong Kong Provider of global chauffeur services 100 100
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17.  Subsidiaries {continued)

{1)  The parent holds an equity interest directly in Addison Lee Group Limited. Equity interest in other subsidiary
undertakings are held indirectly by the parent.

{2)  Addison Lee Coaches Limited was disposed of during the financial year ended 31 August 20189.

{3}  Except for the interests in The Addison Lee Purpose Trust where the Group is deemed to have control, all
equity interests are held in ordinary shares. '

18. Investment in associate

Details of the associated undertaking is as follows:

Name of undertaking Country of Nature of business Class of % equity
incorporation and shareholding interest
place of business 2019 2018

Haulmont Technology Limited  England & Wales Software consultancy  Ordinary 30 30

Haulmont Technology Limited’s services include assisting the Group in maintaining its primary booking and allocation

platform.
2019 2018
£000 £'000

Investment in assocliated undertakings

At beginning of year 715 644
Share of post-acquisition profit 19 191
Dividends received - [120)
At end of year 734 715

All of the operations of the associate were continuing durlng the year (2018: all continuing).

19. iInventories

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Raw materials and consumables 211 194

Inventaries held by the Group include, but are not limited to, spare automobile parts and repair equipment. The
Group periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and writes off inventory based on its assessment of market
circumstances and the general condition of the items.
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20. Financlal assets and financial Kabilities

An overview of all financial instruments held by the Group is set out below, including details of each type of
financial instrument, and the basis used to determine the fair vaiue of the instruments, incfuding judgements
and estimation of uncertainty of fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly {that Is, derived from prices}; and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset of liability that are not based on observable market data

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Notes Fair value Assets at Financia) Tota)

hlerarchy fair value assets at

through amortised

Financial assets the P&L cost
£'G00 £006 £°000

2019
Government and corparate bonds (a) Level 1 852 . 852
Certificates of deposits {b) Levef 1 8,840 - 8,840
Cash and cash equivalents {c) - B,357 8,357
Trade and other receivables {d} - 43,914 43,914
9,692 52,271 61,963
Total current 8,840 52,271 61,111
Total non-current 852 - 852
2018

Government and corporate bonds {a} Level 1 1.468 - 1,468
Certificates of deposits (b} Level 1 9,444 - 9,444
Cash and cash equivalents (<) . 1,687 1,687
Trade and other receivables {d) . 46,887 46,887
10,912 48,574 59,486
Total current 9,454 48,574 58,018
Total non-current 1,468 - 1,468
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20,

Financial assets and financial fiabilities (continued)

Notes fFairvalue  Liabilities at Financial Total
hierarchy fairvalue liabilities at
through amortised
Financial labilities the P&L cost
£000 £'000 £'000
2019
Trade and other payables {e) - 47,371 47,371
Interest-hearing loans and borrowings {f) - 357,620 357,620
Right of use liabilities 21 - 49,820 49,820
- 454,811 454,811
Total current - 337,753 337,753
Total non-current . 117,058 117,058
2018
Trade and other payables {e) - 44,074 44,074
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {f - 324,670 324,670
Right of use liabilities 21 - 56,092 56,092
424,836 424,836
Total current - 130,825 130,825
Total non-current - 294,011 294,011

Government and corporate bonds

Up until 17 October 2018, the Group appointed Credit Suisse (Guernsey) Limited ('C5G') to act as an investment
manager for certain assets in Addison Lee Insurance Limited. Under the terms of a discretionary portfolio
management agreement, C5G invested in a balanced portfolio of segregated government and corporate bonds
with the following investment limitations:

% Maximum portfolio duration: 5 years

*  Maximum individual holding maturity: B years

= Maximum amount that maybe held with any one counterparty limit: 10% of the value of the portfolio with
a maximum of £1 million.

* Minimum credit rating: A3 Moody's / A-Standard and Poor’s.

*  Minimum cash balance: 5% of the portfolio.

* Noinvestment in instruments that suffer withholding tax.

The Group’s holdings in corporate bonds formed part of this portfolio. The Group managed these debt
instruments on a fair-value basis in accordance with management policies, and also monitored the performance
of the portfolio of investments on a fair value basis. These instruments were measured at fair value through
the profit and loss.
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20. Financial assets and financial labilities {continued)

a} Government and corporate bands (continued)

On 17 Qctober 2018, the discretionary portfolio management agreement was cancelled and the holdings in
corporate bonds were liquidated with the proceeds being pfaced on fixed deposit.

Certain investments, cash and cash equivalents and accrued investment income of Addison Lee Insurance Limited
are subject to a security interest agreement in favour of the following party:

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Government and corporate bonds 852 1,458

Certain investrnents, cash and cash equivalents and accrued investment income of Addison Lee Insurance Limited
are subject to a security intarest agreement in favour of the following party:

Security held in favour of: 2019 2018
£'000 £000

Aviva Insurance Limited 1409 207
1,409 2,071

b) Certificates of deposit

The Addison Lee Purpose Trust has appointed Ravenscroft Cash Management Limited (formerly known as Royal
London Asset Management {C.1) Limited ("RCML") to act as investment manager. Under the terms of a
discretionary portfolio management agreement, RCML are permitted to invest in a balanced portfolio of
securities and money market instruments within the following investment limitations.

Deposits with approved institutions — maximum maturity 3 months;
*  Certificates of deposit issued by approved institutions — maximum maturity 2 years
* Government securities andfor corporate bonds having a maximum maturity of 2 years and 1 vear

respectively where the issuer has a long-term credit rating no lower than AA by Standard and Poor’s and/or
Macdy’s Investors Service.

The Group's hotdings in certificates of deposit form part of these portfolios. The Group managas these deht
instruments on a fair-value basis in accordance with management policies, and also monitars the performance

of the portfolio of investments on a fair value basis. These instruments are measured at fair value through profit
and loss.

These instruments are highly liquid and are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, which may be
subject to some risk of change in value on early conversion.
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20. Financlal assets and financial Kabilities (continued)

b} Certificates of deposit {continued)

2019 2018
£000 £000
Centificates of deposit 8,840 9,444

Certain investments including certificates of depasit, cash and cash equivalents and accrued investment income
of Addison Lee purpose Trust are subject to a security interest agreement in favour of the following party:

Security held in favour of: 2019 2018
£°000 €'000
Aviva Insurance Limited 312 1,757
QBE Insurance (Europe} Limited 8,429 7,590
8,741 9,347

¢} Cash and cash equivalent

2019 2018

£000 £000
Cash at bank 7,571 728
Cash —insurance (1) 786 959
Cash and cash equivalents 8,357 1,687
Bank overdraft - {2,541)
Balances per statement of cash flows 8,357 (B54)

{1) Cash balances are funds held in the Addison Lee Purpose Trust that and Addison Lee Insurance Limited are
subject to security interest agreement in favour of third parties, as set cut in notes 20 (a) and 20 {b) above.

d} Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

£'000 £000
Trade receivables 29,833 30,299
Provision for impairment {3,578) {464)
Net trade receivables 26,255 29,835
Receivables from related parties 6,072 4,829
Other receivables, prepayment and accrued income 11,587 12,223
Total trade and other receivables 43,914 46,887

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.

As at 31 August 2019 trade receivables with an initial carrying value of £3,578,000 {2018: £464,000) were
impaired and fully provided for.
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20,

d)

e)

Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Classification as trade and other receivables, prepayments and accrued income

Trade receivables are amounts due fram customers for services performed In the ordinary course of the business.
Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quated in an active market. If collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less they are classified as
current assets if not, they are presented as non-current assets. The trade receivables are generally due for
settlemnent within 30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Receivable from related parties

These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group. interest is
charged at commercial rates. Collateral is not normally requested.

Fair values of trade and other receivables

Due to short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to be the same as their fair
value.

Impairment and risk exposure

Information aboul the impairment of trade and other receivables, their credit quality and the Group's exposure
te credit risk and interest rate risk can be found in note 22.

Trade and other payables

Amounts due within ane year 2019 2013
£'000 £'000

Trade payables 15,872 22,432
Payroll tax and other statutory liabilities 3,873 3,933
Liabilities refating to held for sale assets : 50
Other payables, accruals and deferred income 27,626 17,703
47,371 44,124

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 to 45 days. Amounts due to Group
undertakings are payable on demand and bear interest on commercial terms as assessed periodicatly by the
Group. Dther liabilities are non-interest bearing and have an average term of Jess than six months.

The carrying amounts of trade payables are assumed to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature.
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20. Financial assets and financial liabllities (continued)

f) Borrowings

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

Bank loans Loan fr Hire
and rela:er: Loan ) purchase/ Total
overdraft (1) parties notes fmanf:e lease
obligations
£'000 €000 £'000 £'000 £°000
2019
current 235,933 31,025 - 3,779 270,737
Between one and five years 261 5,353 5,614
After more than five years - - 81,269 - 81,269
Total borrowings 236,194 31,025 81,269 9,132 357,620
Current 235,933 31,025 - 3,779 270,737
Non-current 261 81,269 5,353 86,883
201RB .
Current 45,501 16,888 2,550 64,939
getween one and five years 196,036 . 12,934 208,970
After more than five years 50,761 - 50,761
Total borrowlngs 241,537 15,888 50,761 15,484 324,670
Current 45,501 16,888 - 2,550 64,939
Non-current 196,036 50,761 12,934 259,731

{3} Includes bank overdraft of £nif {2018; £2,541,000).
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20. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

fi

Barrowings (continued)

Senior bank debt, bank loans and overdrafts

Bank borrowings are secured over the assets of the Group. The Group has £235.9m (2018: £45.5m) bank
borrowings Including revolving credit facilities that are payable within one year.

Of the £235.9m bank loans payable within one year, £230.6m is repayable on maturity on 17 April 2020. Interest
on these borrowings are generally charged either one-month or six-month GBP LIBOR plus a margin between
4,00% and 4.75%.

On 29 November 2018, with the consent of the ING Bank N.V. acting on behaif of the Group’s lenders, the
termination date in respect of £30.0m of the £34.9m that was payable by 19 April 2019 was extended to 17 April
2020.

Subsidiary undertakings, Addison Lee Group Limited and Addison Lee Financing Limited entered into a fixed and
floating arrangement with ING Bank N.V., London branch on 19 April 2013 as amended on 7 July 2017, in respect
of bank borrowings of fellow group companies including loans provided to Addison Lee Financing Limited. The
bank borrowings as at 31 August 2019 are £230.6m (2018: £230.6m} and are secured over the assets of group
companies.

Subsidiary undertakings, American Limousine LLC, ATH Transport LLC, Flyte Line Transportation LLC, American
Transportation Holdings LLC, Tristar Service {US) inc., Transportation Technology Services Inc., Tristar Chauffeur
Management Inc. and Tristar Yehicle Leasing Inc., entered into a secured revolving loan facllity with M&T Bank,
New York on 19 May 2016 as amended on 17 July 2018. The facHity has a limit of US$10m (£7.7m], of which
USS5.0m (£4.1/n) [2018: £7.6m) has been drawn as at the year end.

Subsidiary undertaking, Addison Lee Limited entered into a floating unsecured overdraft arrangement with
Barciays Bank Plc on 25 April 2018. The facllity Is reviewed annually and has a limit of £6m, of which £nil (2018:
£2.5m} has been drawn as at the year end.

Loons from related porties

Loans from related parties accrue interest at a commercial rate determined by the Group. The leans are unsecured
and repayabie on demand.

Loan notes
Loan notes are stated net of issue costs of £0.1m (2018: £0.1m), and comprise of the following:

£19.25m (2018: £19.25m| repayable April 2026 and accruing interest at 4% p.a.
£31.62m (2018: £21.62m) repayable April 2026 and accruing interest at 12% p.a.
£15.55m [2018: £nil) repayable April 2026 and accruing interest at 20% p.a.
£15.00m (2018: £nil) repayable July 2028 and accruing interest at 20% p.a.
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20. Financlal assets and financial llabilities (continued)

f] Borrowings {continued)

Hire purchase/finonce lease obligations
Assets acquired under hire purchase/finance lease contracts secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets,

Fair value

For borrowings the fair values are not materially different to their carrying amounts, since the interest payable
on those horrowings is considered to be either close to current market rates or the borrowings are of a short-
term nature,

Risk exposures
Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from current and non-current borrowings are set out in note 22.

21. Right of use liabilities
Right of use liabilities relate to operating lease arrangements accounted for under IFRS 16, the policy for which

Is set out in note 2(x). The liabilities relate primarily to vehicle and property leases. The corresponding assets
are included In right-of-use assets disclosed in note 14.
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22.

Financial risk management
For the year ended 31 August 2019, Group's main exposures to financial risk have arisen due to:

Credit risk resulting from the creditworthiness of both its customer base and of the banks which cask
deposits have been placed.

®*  Interest rate and liquidity risk arising from the debt funding
®*  Foreign exchange fluctuations investments in subsidiaries

Financial risks are managed in fine with the objectives and processes laid down by the Group.

Foreign exchange — market risk

Following the acquisition of the Tandem, Tristar and Flyte Tyme groups of companies in the United States, the
Group’s pringipal foreign exchange exposure is in the translation of net investments in its subsidiaries.

Currency exposures arising from strategic transactions such as acquisitions or loans to subsidiaries are reviewed
and hedged on a case by case basis.

Amounts recognized In profit or loss and other comprehensive income

During the year, the following foreign exchange related amounts were recognired in profit or joss and other
comprehensive income:

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Net foreign exchange gain recognised in the income statement:
Included in net financing cost 1,758 -
Net foss recognised in other comprehensive income:
On translation of foreign operations (1,924} -
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22.  Financial risk management {continued)

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
impact on post tax profit
USD/GBP exchange rate — US dollar strengthens / {weakens) by 5% 760 691
interest rate — market risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings with variable interest rates. Interest rates on loan
notes and lease obligations are fixed. A movement of 25 base points in interest rates would have impacted the
financial statements as follows:

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Impact on post tax profit
Interest rates — decrease / (increase) of 25 basis points 577 209

Interest rate exposure arising from the Group’s borrowing and deposit activities is managed by using a combination
of fixed and variable rate debt instruments, and interest rate swaps.

Credit risk
Credit risk exists due to the possibility of the counterparty default between the date of asset recognition and date
of settlement and arises on:

&  Trade receivables pwed by the Group’s customers;
e (Cash and cash equivalents deposited at banks; and
s Unsettled in the money derivative financial instruments

Trade credit risk is managed primarily by the Group’s credit control staff members, who assess creditworthiness
and allocate credit {imits based on information available from independent credit reference agencles together
with past and current collections experience. The customer base is well diversified and there is no significant
concentration of risk.

Cash deposits are held only with high grade banks and financial institutions.

Impairment factors

The Group assesses annually whether there is any evidence of impairment based on whether any of the following
indicators are present:

s Default event, or financial difficulties suggestive that a default event is probable

s Significant delinquency in payments for any other reason
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22.

Financial risk management {continued}

Liquidity risk

The Group's main liquidity risk arises from the maturity of its borrowings. Management agrees an annual funding
and liquidity plan as part of the Group’s annual budget, designed to ensure that the Group maintains a prudent
liquidity buffer at all times and cash flow forecasts are regularly monitored against plans and budgets.

Maturities of financial Habilities
The tabies below analyse the Graup's financial liabilities into groupings based on their contractual maturity dates:

Within1l Betweenl After 5 Total
year andS5 years years
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 August 2019
Trade and other payables 47,371 - . 47,371
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 270,737 5.614 81,263 357,620
318,108 5,614 81,269 404,991
At 31 August 2018
Trade and other payables 44,074 - - 44,074
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 64,939 208,970 50,761 324,670
109,013 208,970 50,761 368,744
Maturities of right of use liabilities
Within 1 Betweenl After s Total
year and 5 years years
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 August 2019 19,645 22,120 8,055 49,820
At 31 August 2018 21,812 24,035 10,246 56,093
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23. Provisions

Motor Insurance tease Totat

claims technical dilapid-

atlons
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As 1 September 2018 7,620 1,791 448 9,859
Charge for the year - 388 388
Movements on technical claims . (799) . {799)
Movements on motor claims (86) - {86)
As at 31 August 2019 7,534 992 836 9,362
Notes 2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Claims outstanding 992 1,718
Unearned premium - 73
24 992 1,791

24. Insurance

Addison Lee Insurance Limited (insurance company} was set up to specifically cover the motor insurance needs of
the operating subsidiaries within the Group. The Group conducted its insurance activities primarily through the
insurance company from 16 November 2011 to 26 November 2015. The detail of the claims history is set out below.

Claims development history
The following tables show the development of claims set out in note 23 over a period of time.

The policy period for each policy year runs as foliows:
2010/11 to 2013/14: 16 November to 15 November
2014/15: 16 November 2014 to 26 November 2015

The total provided for a policy year at the first financial year end after the inception of that policy is therefore
for part of the policy period only, but it may include provision for unexpired risk in the remaining part of the
policy period.
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24.

Insurance {continued)

Estimate of ultimate claims costs gross:

2010/11 2011712 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Tatal
£7000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000

Position at end of reporting year:
Cne year later 2,932 4,093 3,496 3,794 4,708
Two years later 4,374 5,284 5,279 5,765 6,537
Three years later 4,362 5,005 5,044 5,404 6,681 -
Four years later 4,370 5,048 4,978 5,233 6,558 .
Five years later 4,231 5,080 5,031 5,236 6,389 6,383
Six years later 4,264 5,170 4,956 5,180 - 5,180
Seven years later 4,346 5,155 4,921 - . 4,921
Eight years later 4,341 5,227 . " - 5,227
Nine years later 4,355 - - - - 4,355
Current estimate of cumulative 4,355 5,227 4,921 5,189 6,389 26,072
claims
Cumulative payments to date (4,299) (5,145) (4,882) (5,106} {5,648) {25,080}
Liabilities recognised 56 82 39 14 741 992

No claims development table is presented for the goods in transit policy as claims incurred are typically settied
within one year.

Insurance risk management

The insurance company accepts insurance risk through Its insurance contracts where it assumes the risk of loss
from persons or organisations that are directly subject to the underlying loss. The insurance company is exposed
to the uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under these contracts. The actual
number and value of claims will vary from year to year and from the level estimated, possibly significantly.

The insurance company is exposed to inaccurate pricing of underwriting.

The insurance company accepts risks provided only that, among other considerations, the insurance company
continues to be able to meet its solvency requirements as specified by the Guernsey Financiat Services
Commission ("the GFSC") and provided that the insurance company remains fully funded to a level sufficient to
satisfy the GFSC, including due allowance being made for any capital contributions, inwards letters of credit and
subordinated loans. All material changes to the underwriting program have to be notified to the GFSC, which has
the power to abject to any change that is proposed.

The insurance company manages its risk via its underwriting strategy within an overall risk management
framewerk, Pricing is based on assumptions. which have regard to trends and past experience, Exposures are
managed by having documented underwriting limits and criteria.
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24. insurance (continued)

Concentration risk

The insurance company only provides insurance cover to, and is therefore only exposed to, the insurance risks of
Group entities and drivers who provide services to and receive services from Group entities. The insurance
company underwrites a range of exposures covering the main areas of the Group's business and the contractual
liabilities of drivers as follows:

* Motor deductible protection; and
e  Motor deductible protection reinsurance

Assumptions and sensitivities

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The insurance company uses several statistical and actuarial
techniques based on past claims development experience. This includes indications such as claims cost and
expected loss ratios.

The insurance company considers that the liability for insurance claims recognised in the statement of financial
position is adequate. However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

Some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit and the shareholder’s equity
For each sensitivity, the Impact of a change in a single factor is shown, with other assumptions unchanged.

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
5% increase /{decrease) in claims outstanding and IBNR reserves 50 %
5% increase /{decrease} in loss ratios 1,161 1,161
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25. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group or company has a legally enforceable right to do so.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances, after offset, for financial reporting purposes:

Property, Goodwill Other Total
plant and and assets
equipment intangible
assets
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 5eptember 2017 3,018 [2,944) 2,008 2,083
Acquisitions and disposals - (1,907) - T {1,907)
{Expense}/credit for the year (522) 1,682 500 1,660
At 31 August 2018 2,496 (3,169) 2,509 1,836
Prior year adjustment 1,320 234 {2.027) {473)
Credit/{expense) for the year 1,009 (701) (482) (174) -
At 31 August 2019 4,825 (3,636) - 1,189

Prior year adjustment primarily relates to unclaimed capital ailowances which resulted in higher accounting base
of fixed assets offset by lower available tax losses. There is no expiry date in respect of utilisation of the temporary
timing differences.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances after offset of assets and labilities as presented within the statement of financial position:

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Non-current:
Deferred tax assets 1,189 2,524
Deferred tax liabilities - (68B8)
1,189 1,835

The Group has not recognised gross temporary differences of £43.5m (2018: £15.2m) as it does not currently expect
to be able to recover these amounts in the near term.
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26. Share capital

Allotted, called wp and fuliy paid

47,558,269 Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

27. Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements’

Motor vebhicles
Leasehold improvements

28. Reiated party transactions

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
476 476
2019 2018
£000 £'000
3,432 20,512
- 2,245
3,432 22,757

The following are transactions with related parties engaged by the Group during the year and the balances

outstanding at the balance sheet date:

Transactions with companles under common control:

CIM Global LLC
Meonitoring fees charged to the Group
Balance payable by the Group

CEP Il Alphyn | 5.C.A
Balances due to the Group

Transactions with associated undertaking:
Haulmont Technology Limited

Sales to the Group
Balance payable by the Group
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2019 2018
£'000 £'000
(250C) (156)
{500} {250)
1,295 1,295
2019 2018
£000 £000
(1,555} (2,314}
{120) (215)
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28.

Related party transactions (continued}

Transactions with parent company undertaking:

Addison Lee Midco | Limited

Interest expense payable accrued by the Group outstanding
Loan notes payable outstanding

Nan-interest bearing loans payable

Addison Lee Holdings Limited
Non-interest bearing receivable balances
Non-interest bearing loans payable

Addison Lee Coaches Limited
Non-interest bearing loans receivable

Addison Lee Payments Limited
Non-interest bearing payable balances

Addison Lee Midco Il Limited
Non-interest bearing receivable balances
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2019 2018
£000 £000
(23,948) {13,591)
{81,420) {50,761)
(3,244) (3,000)
2019 2018
£000 £000
2,686 1,533
(318) (318)
2019 2018
£000 £000
2,723 2,708
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
8,505
2019 2018
£7000 £000
110 21
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

29.

28. Related party transactions {continued)

Transactions with directors

A Boland
Cumulative interest charged by the Group on a loan provided to the director
Balance of loan and interest owed to the Group

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

The key management of the Group are the directors,

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefit

Post-employment benefits relate to contributions to defined contribution schemes.

Remuneration disclosed above includes the foliowing amounts paid to the highest paid director as follows:

Total emoiuments {excluding pension contributions)
Pension contributions

Controlling party

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
222 156
2,067 2,001
2019 2018
£'000 £000
725 437
11

725 848
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
125 507
425 507

At the balance sheet date, the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party was Carlyle Europe Partners [il
L.P. The largest and smallest group preparing consolidated financial statements that incorporates the financial
statements of the Company is headed by Addisan Lee Financing Limited, a company incorporated in England and

Wales.

On 23 March 2020 the company was acquired by a consortium of investors led by Cheyne Capital. The ultimate
parent undertaking and controlling party is Cheyne European Strategic Value Credit S.a.rl 3, a company

incorporated in Luxembourg.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

30.

Events after the Bafance Sheet Date

On 20 February 2020, Addison Lee US business was sold to RMA Worldwide Chauffeured Transportation and the
business now operate in North America as a partner under the Addison Lee Brand. Loans and other intercompany
receivable balances from US business were written off as part of the sale process resulting in the provisional net
loss on disposal of £22.5m.

On 23 March 2020, the Group was acguired by consortium of investors, led by Cheyne Capital and Liam Griffin.
As part of the financial restructuring process -

Addison Lee Midco 1l Limited and Atlas Bidco Limited enter into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Addison Lee Midco Y Limited sold its shares in Addison Lee Financing Limited to Atias Bidco Limited
for £1;

intercompany receivable and payable balances within Addison Lee Midco t Uimited with Addison Lee
Financing Limited and Addison Lee Group Limited were released in full;

Lenders released the charge over the shares of Addison Lee Financing Limited;

Lenders unconditionally and irrevocably released and discharged senior finance loans and unpaid accrued
interest in respect of the debt, for nil consideration;

Addison Lee Financing Limited with all its subsidiaries acceded to the New Senior finance agreement as
new obligors;

The intercreditor agreement was entered hetween Atlas Bidco Limited, Addison Lee Financing Limited and
each obligor and the Lenders under the New SFA,;

Under the New senior finance agreement, Addison Leg Financing Limited drew down £36m super senior
facility, recognised new £100m senier facility and repaid £16m Bridge funding facility;

Lease financing far new vehicles continues to be readily available on a replacement and extension basis
and the forecast does not anticipate growth in the size of the fleet relative to the closing position as at 31
August 2019.

Covid-19 is considered a non-adjusting event on the current financial statements. The business had taken
measures to adjust to the current pandemic as and the Board is performing regular reviews of its strategic position
to ensure we are best prepared to respond to any future changes.
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

31. Business combinations

in the prior year, on 1 September 2017, the Group acquired Transportation Technology Services Inc. ("Tandem”}
{see also note 17) for a consideration of US$5.5m {£4.3m). The financial results of Tandem have been included in
the Group’s consolidated results from 1 September 2017.

Detalls of purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows

Year ended 31 August 2018 $'000 £000
Consideration:

Cash to acquire 100% of shares 5,536 4,277
Total purchase consideration 5536 4,277

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Book value Falr value
£000 £000
Intangible assets 903 5,760
Existing goodwil! 697
Property, plant and equipment 43 43
Loan note deposits 217 217
Deferred tax asset/(liability} 10 {1,907}
Receivables 334 334
Accruals and deferred income (140) {140)
Other current llabilities (30) {30)
Net borrowings {4,917) -
Net identifiable assets/{liabilities) acquired {2,883) 4,277
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Not 2019 2018
otes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 5 ) _47,558 47,558
Current assets
Debtors ‘ 6 346,561 304,828
346,561 304,828
Creditars:
Amounts falling due within one year 7 {269,843}  (32,302)
Net current {liabilities) / assets 76,712 272,526
Total assets less current liabliities 124,270 320,088
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 8 (66,420) (256,498)
Net assets 57,850 63,586
Capital and reserves

Calted up share capital 9 476 476
Share premium account 47,083 47,083
Retained losses 10,291 16,027
Total shareholder’s equity 57,850 63,586

Parent Company Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

No profit and loss account is presented for Addison Lee Financing Limited as permitted under section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006. The parent company's loss for the year ended 31 August 2019 is £5,736,000 (2018: profit of £26,201,000).

The financizl statements were approved by the board of diractors on 7 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Campany Registration No. 08486652

P B Suter
Director
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Issued Share Retained Total
share premium profit
capital
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2017 476 47,083 {10,174} 37,385
Profit for the year 26,201 26,201
Total comprehensive profit for the year 26,201 26,201
At 31 August 2018 a76 47,083 16,027 63,586
Loss for the year {5,736) (5.736)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {5,736} {5,736}
At 31 August 2019 476 47,083 10,291 §7,850
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ADDISON LEE FINANCING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

2.

Autherisation of financlal statements and statement of compliance with FR$101

The parent company financial statements of Addison Lee Financing Limited (the “company”) for the year ended 31
August 2019 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 September 2020, and the balance sheet was
signed on the board’s behalf by P Suter. Addison Lee Financing Limited is a private company incarporated and
domiciled in the United Kingdom.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006. FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework
for a ‘qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard which addresses the financial reporting requirements and
disclosure exemptions in the individual financial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the
recognition, measurement and disclosure requiremments of EU-adopted IFRS.

tn the prior year, the company financial statements were prepared in accordance with the requirements of FRS102.
There are no material differences on the financial statements of the company and accordingly reconciliation of
differences between FR5101 and FRS 102 is not provided

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for investment properties and
certain financial Instruments measured at fair values. The directors have taken advantage of the exemption
available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not presented an income statement or a statement of
comprehensive income for the Company.

The accounting policies of the Company follow the Group policies which are set out on pages 18 to 67 of the
consolidated financial statements. The financial statements are prepared in British Pound Sterling and are rounded
ta the nearest thousand pounds (£000Q).

Accounting policles

Basis of preparation
The atcounting pelicies which follow have been applied in preparation of the financial statements for the year, The
Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

* The requirements of paragraphs 62 B64(d), B62{e), B64(g), B54{h), B64{j} to B&4[{m), B64{n}Nii), B64(o){ii}, B&4(p],
B864{g)lii), B66 and B&7 of IFRS3 Business Combinations

* The requirements of IFRS 7 Fingncial instrurnents: Disclosures

* The reqguirement of paragraph 91-99 of {FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

* The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentotion of Financicl Statements to present comparative
information in respect of Paragraph 79(a)liv) of 1AS 1;

* The reguirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f) and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentotion of Financial Statements

+ The requirements of 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

* The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

* The requirements of paragraph 17 of 1AS 24 Related Party Disciosures

* Therequirementsin |AS 24 Refoted Party Disclosures to disclose related parties transactions entire into between
two or more members of the Group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly
owhed by such a2 member (Group)

* The requirements of paragraph 134(d) to 134({f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS 36 impairment of Assets

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts report for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for
revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ
from those estirnates. Details are set out in Strategic Report of consolidated financial statements.
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3. Auditors remuneration

2019 2018
£000 E'000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of
the Company's financial statements 575

Auditors remuneration in 2018 was incurred by Addison Lee Holdings Limited.

4. Employees

The company did not engage any employees (2018: none} and did not incur and employment related costs {2018:
£nil} during the year.

S. Fixed asset investments

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

Investments in subsidiary undertaking 47,558 47,558
47,558 47,558

Investrents in subsidiary undertakings are held at cost. The Company has direct and indirect subsidiaries which
are reflected in note 17 of its consolidated financial statements.

6. Debtors

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Amounts due from group undertakings 346,561 304,828
" 348,561 304,828

7. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
20189 2018
£°000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 230,629 15,000
Amounts due to group undertakings 13,472 13,293
Accruals and deferred expenses 25,748 4,009
269,849 32,302
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10.

11.

12.

Creditors: amounts falllng due after more than one year

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

8antk loans and overdrafts - 215,628
Loan notes 4% 19,250 19,250
Loan notes 12% 47,170 21,620
66,420 256,498

The loan notes are repayable on 19 April 2026 and accrue interest, compounded each year at the rate
of 4% and 12% respectively.

Share capital

2019 2018
Alletted, called up and fully paid £000 £°000
47,558,269 (2018: 47,558,269) ardinary shares of £0.01 each 476 476

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
On 23 March 2020, Addison Lee's UK business was sold by The Carlyle Group {"Carlyle”) to a consortium of

investors. As a result, Cheyne European Strategic Value Credit $.a.r.|. 2 became the Group’s largest shareholder,
Also see note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of exemptions not to disclose transactions with entities wholly owned by the
group headed by Addison Lee Financing Limited.

Key management
The key management of the Company are its directors. No director received any emoluments in relation to services
provided to the Company.

Controlling parties

At the balance sheet date, the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party was Carlyle Europe Partners ||
L.p. The largest and smallest group preparing consolidated financial statements that incorporates the financial
statements of the Company is headed by Addison Lee Financing Limited, a company incorporated in England and
Wales.

On 23 March 2020 the company was acquired by a consortium of investors led by Cheyne Capital. The uftimate
parent undertaking and controlling party is Cheyne European Strategic Value Credit S.a.r.| 3, a company
incorporated in Luxembourg.
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10.

11.

12.

Creditors: amounts faliing due after more than one year

2019 2018

£000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts - 215,628
Loan notes 4% 19,250 19,250
Loan notes 12% ‘ 47,170 21,620
66,420 256,498

The loan notés are repayable on 19 April 2026 and accrue interest, cornpounded each year at the rate
of 4% and 12% respectively.

Share capital

2019 2018
Allotted, called up and fully paid £'000 £000
47,558,269 (2018: 47,558,269} ordinary shares of £0.01 each 476 476

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

On 23 March 2020, Addison Lee’s UK business was sold by The Carlyle Group (“Carlyie”) to a consortium of
investors. As a result, Cheyne European Strategic Value Credit $.a.r.l. 2 became the Group's largest shareholder.
Also see note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of exemptions not to disclose transactions with entitles wholly owned by the
group headed by Addison Lee Financing Limited,

Key management
The key management of the Comgpany are its directors. No director received any emoluments in refation to services
provided to the Company.

Controlling parties
At the balance sheet date, the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party was Carlyle Europe Partners it

L.P. The largest and smallest group preparing consolidated financial statements that incorporates the financial
statements of the Company is headed by Addison Lee Financing Limited, a company incorporated in England and
Wales.

On 23 March 2020 the company was acguired by a consortium of investors led by Cheyne Capital. The ultimate
parent undertaking and controlling party is Cheyne European Strategic Value Credit S.a.r 3, a company
incorporated in Luxembourg.
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